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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

The members present their report with the financial statements of the Limited Partnership ('LP') for the year ended  31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the LP under review was that of a franchise operator.

Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP is a limited partnership whose members are indirect subsidiaries of Hilton  Worldwide
Holdings Inc. and is based in the United Kingdom (UK). Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc. and its  worldwide
subsidiaries are collectively known as "the group" or "the Hilton group". Further details are contained in the  note
"Parent Undertaking, Controlling Party and Consolidating Entity".

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
The LP's key financial indicators of performance during the year are considered to be:

2023 2022
$ $

Turnover 4,250,575 4,614,308
Gross profit 3,670,014 3,823,460

The primary driver behind the movement in turnover and gross profit is due to the annual sweep of the recently  signed
Canadian franchise contracts held by the LP being transferred to another entity in the wider group at net book value  and
the impact of not recognising income from Russian hotels due to collectability concerns. During the year 18  contracts
were transferred (2022: 14). The primary driver behind the movement in gross profit is related to the movements  in
revenue and foreign exchange.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The LP will continue to operate as a franchise operator in certain countries including Canada, Russia and Brasil.

DESIGNATED MEMBERS
The designated members during the year under review were:

Hilton Worldwide Services Limited
Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND ALLOCATION TO MEMBERS
The profit for the year before members' remuneration and profit shares was $1,698,377 (2022 - $677,506 profit).

MEMBERS' INTERESTS
The profits and losses (including profit and losses of a capital nature) shall be divided among the members in  accordance
with their percentage of capital contribution.

GOING CONCERN
The LP's activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, its competitive, economic  and
interest rate risks are set out in the 'Review of Business' and 'Principal Risks and Uncertainties' section.

As of 31 December 2023, the LP has net assets and net current assets, and the members consider the LP to be in a  strong
position financially. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis because management  believe
that the LP can meet its liabilities as they fall due, when considering the LP's future earnings forecast and risks,  including
current macroeconomic factors and ongoing worldwide conflicts, for a period of 12 months from the date of approval  of
the financial statements.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Competitive risk
This LP operates in various locations around the world. Risks arise from competitors offering better franchise deals  or
more successful brands that would be attractive to franchisors. The LP monitors its competitors' performance  and
participates in regular benchmarking to understand the LP's position compared to its competitors.

Economic risk
The LP is subject to the cyclical nature of the hospitality and travel industry and is also impacted by the effect  that
global socio-economic and political trends have on its customers. Macroeconomic and other factors beyond our  control
can reduce demand for hospitality products and services, including demand for rooms at our hotels. Factors such  as
political instability or civil unrest, terrorist activities or threats and resulting heightened travel security measures  may
foreclose travel to certain locales or decrease the appeal of travel among the general population. Similarly, increases  in
costs due to inflation or other factors, such as future outbreaks of COVID-19 or other contagious diseases,  Russia's
invasion of Ukraine, the 2023 escalation of conflict in the Middle East or the UK's exit from the European Union,  that
may not be fully offset by increases in revenues in our business, as well as increases in overall prices and the prices  of
our offerings due to inflation, could weaken consumer demand for travel and the other products we offer and  adversely
affect our revenues. Budgeting and forecasting processes enable the LP to identify risks in market trends at an  early
stage to help mitigate such risks.

Ukraine risk
As part of ongoing monitoring, management have identified the military invasion of Ukraine by Russia (referred  to
Ukraine invasion) as a risk that could cause significant disruption to the business operated by the LP and has  negatively
affected the global economy. Financial and economic sanctions imposed on certain industry sectors and parties  in
Russia by the United States of America, UK and EU, as well as potential retaliatory actions by Russia, could also have  a
negative impact on the global economy. Whilst it is expected that this unprecedented situation will be temporary,  there
could be a long period of business interruption during which the revenues, profitability and cash flows of the LP  are
expected to be negatively impacted. The LP earns income from hotels that operate in Russia and the  broader
consequences of this conflict, including rising energy prices and shortages of and increased costs for food, goods  and
services and transportation or further escalation in adjacent areas could have negative downstream effects on the LP  and
operations. Further expansion or escalation of military confrontations or related geopolitical tensions,  including
increased restrictions on global trade, could result in, among other things, lower travel demand, cyberattacks,  terrorist
activities, supply disruptions and changes to foreign currency exchange rates and constraints, volatility, or disruption  in
financial markets, any of which may adversely affect the global economy and the LP.

Interest rate risk
This LP is subject to interest rate risk on intercompany loans where the interest rate is linked to applicable market  index
rates such as the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) or the Euro Short Term Rate (ESTR). The group's  treasury
department monitors interest rates.

Exchange rate risk
The LP is subject to exchange rate risk on its income from franchise agreements. The group's treasury  department
monitors exchange rates.

.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The members are responsible for preparing the Report of the Members and the financial statements in accordance  with
applicable law and regulations.

Legislation applicable to limited partnerships requires the members to prepare financial statements for each  financial
year. Under that law the members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with  Financial
Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'. Under legislation applicable to limited partnerships  the
members must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of  the
state of affairs of the LP and of the profit or loss of the LP for that period. In preparing these financial statements,  the
members are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed

and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the LP will

continue in business

The members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the  LP's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LP and enable them to  ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the  assets
of the LP and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
So far as the members are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies  Act
2006) of which the LP's auditors are unaware, and each member has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as  a
member in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the LP's auditors  are
aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE MEMBERS:

Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited - Designated member

13 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HILTON WORLDWIDE FRANCHISING LP

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP (the LP) for the year ended 31  December
2023 which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet,  Reconciliation
of Members' Interests, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including material accounting policy information.  The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United  Kingdom
Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United  Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the LP's affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of its profit for the year then

ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying

partnerships.

5

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our  report. We are independent of  the LP in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the LP's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a
guarantee as to the LP's ability to continue as a going concern.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.  The members are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
- the information given in the members' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
-  the members' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements;



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HILTON WORLDWIDE FRANCHISING LP

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course  of
the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the members' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to  qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from

branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- the members were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small qualifying

partnerships regime and take advantage of the small qualifying partnerships' exemption in preparing the
members' report and the requirement to prepare a strategic report.
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Responsibilities of members
As explained more fully in the Statement of Members' Responsibilities, the members are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
members determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the LP's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the members either intend to liquidate the LP or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HILTON WORLDWIDE FRANCHISING LP

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free  from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our  opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with  ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and  are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the  economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in  line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a  material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may  involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent  to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the  primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the LP  and
management.

- We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the LP and determined  that
the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework; (FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' and  the
Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships) and the relevant direct and indirect tax  compliance
regulations in the jurisdictions in which Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP operates; and those that indirectly affect  the
financial statements where non-compliance could have a material effect on the financial statements, in particular  Health
and Safety Regulations, Modern Slavery Act, Employment Law, Bribery Act, Proceeds of Crime Act 2002,  Money
Laundering Regulations 2003 and the General Data Protection Regulation (GD PR).

- We understood how Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP is complying with those frameworks through enquiry  with
management, by identifying the LP's policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations,  and
through the review of minutes of meetings held by those charged with governance for any instances of  non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

- We assessed the susceptibility of the LP's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud  might
occur by enquiring with management to understand their interactions throughout the year with the group's Internal  Audit
and the group's General Counsel's office to assess the risks of material misstatement due to fraud. As part of  our
procedures we reviewed the annual risk assessment process conducted by the group's Internal Audit. This  procedure
evaluates the risk of material misstatement due to fraud by considering the nature and complexity of the LP's  reporting
structure, and most notably considering the likelihood of material misstatements.

- Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws  and
regulations. Our procedures involved:

- Enquiry of members of senior management, and when appropriate those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance or potential non-compliance with laws and regulations that could
affect the financial statements.

- Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
- Obtaining and reading correspondence from legal and regulatory bodies where applicable.
- Journal entry testing, with a focus on unusual entries or transactions based on our understanding of the

business, including post year end closing journals.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial  Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' Report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HILTON WORLDWIDE FRANCHISING LP

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the LP's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the  Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the  LP's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the  fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying LP's members,  as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Claire Johnson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor
1 More London Place
London
SE1 2AF

    June 2024



Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes $ $

TURNOVER 4,250,575 4,614,308

Cost of sales (580,561) (790,848 )

GROSS PROFIT 3,670,014 3,823,460

Administrative expenses (3,477,845 ) (3,581,579 )

OPERATING PROFIT 4 192,169 241,881

Profit/(loss) on disposal of intangible fixed
assets 5 - (47,591)

192,169 194,290

Interest receivable 1,506,208 483,216

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
BEFORE MEMBERS' REMUNERATION
AND PROFIT SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR DISCRETIONARY DIVISION
AMONG MEMBERS 1,698,377 677,506

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,698,377 677,506

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP (Registered number: LP015958)

BALANCE SHEET
31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes $ $

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets 7 839,758 976,306

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 8 32,441,156 31,135,260

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 9 (3,409,729 ) (3,288,144 )

NET CURRENT ASSETS 29,031,427 27,847,116

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 29,871,185 28,823,422

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one
year 10 (3,167,780 ) (3,818,395 )

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
MEMBERS 26,703,405 25,005,027

LOANS AND OTHER DEBTS DUE TO
MEMBERS 11 4,550,010 2,851,632

MEMBERS' OTHER INTERESTS
Capital accounts 22,153,395 22,153,395

26,703,405 25,005,027

TOTAL MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Loans and other debts due to members 11 4,550,010 2,851,632
Members' other interests 22,153,395 22,153,395

26,703,405 25,005,027

Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited - Designated member

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to  LPs subject to the small
LPs regime.

The financial statements were approved by the members of the LP and authorised for issue on 13 June 2024 and were
signed by:



Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

RECONCILIATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

EQUITY
Members' other interests

Members'
capital

(classified
as Other

equity) reserves Total
$ $ $

Balance at 1 January 2023 22,153,395 - 22,153,395
Profit for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members - 1,698,377 1,698,377

Members' interests after profit for the year 22,153,395 1,698,377 23,851,772
Other divisions of profit - (1,698,377 ) (1,698,377 )

Balance at 31 December 2023 22,153,395 - 22,153,395

DEBT TOTAL
Loans and other debts due to MEMBERS'

members less any amounts due INTERESTS
from members in debtors

Other
amounts Total

$ $
Amount due to members 2,851,633
Amount due from members -

Balance at 1 January 2023 2,851,633 25,005,028
Profit for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members - 1,698,377

Members' interests after profit for the year 2,851,633 26,703,405
Other divisions of profit 1,698,377 -

Amount due to members 4,550,010
Amount due from members -

Balance at 31 December 2023 4,550,010 26,703,405

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

RECONCILIATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
for the year ended 31 December 2023

EQUITY
Members' other interests

Members'
capital

(classified
as Other

equity) reserves Total
$ $ $

Balance at 1 January 2022 22,153,395 - 22,153,395
Profit for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members - 677,506 677,506

Members' interests after profit for the year 22,153,395 677,506 22,830,901
Other divisions of profit - (677,506) (677,506 )

Balance at 31 December 2022 22,153,395 - 22,153,395

DEBT TOTAL
Loans and other debts due to MEMBERS'

members less any amounts due INTERESTS
from members in debtors

Other
amounts Total

$ $
Amount due to members 2,174,126
Amount due from members -

Balance at 1 January 2022 2,174,126 24,327,521
Profit for the financial year available for
discretionary division among members - 677,506

Members' interests after profit for the year 2,174,126 25,005,027
Other divisions of profit 677,506 -

Amount due to members 2,851,632
Amount due from members -

Balance at 31 December 2022 2,851,632 25,005,027

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

1.

2.

3.

13

FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPT

As of 31 December 2023, the LP has net assets and net current assets, and the members consider the LP to be in
a strong position financially. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis because
management believe that the LP can meet its liabilities as they fall due, when considering the LP's future earnings
forecast and risks, including current macroeconomic factors and ongoing worldwide conflicts, for a period of 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP is registered in England and Wales. The LP's registered number and
registered office address can be found on the General Information page.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework", the Companies Act 2006 and the Statement of Recommended practice, Accounting by
Limited Liability Partnerships. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented in US Dollar (USD), which is the LP's functional currency. Amounts have
been rounded to the nearest $.

Financial Reporting Standard 101 - reduced disclosure exemptions
The LP has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial
statements, as permitted by FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework":

- the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment;
- the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
- the requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;
- the requirements of paragraph 52, the second sentence of paragraph 89 and paragraphs 90, 91 and 93 of IFRS 16

Leases;
the requirements of paragraph 58 of IFRS 16;

- the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a to c), 120 to
127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

- the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present comparative information in
respect of:
- paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; and
- paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;

- the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 16, and 111 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
- the requirements of paragraphs 134 to 136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
- the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
- the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors;
- the requirements of paragraphs 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
- the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two

or more members of a group;
- the requirements of paragraphs 130(f), 134(d to f) and 135(c to e) of IAS 36 Impairments of Assets.



Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and  assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported  for
revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes  could
differ from those estimates.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on  amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Foreign currency
An entity’s functional currency is determined (not chosen). IAS 21 (The Effects of Changes in Foreign  Exchange
Rates) provides factors, often referred to as indicators, that are considered when identifying the  functional
currency. In some cases, the indicators will clearly identify a particular currency as the functional currency.  In
other cases they will not. When the factors provide a varied result and the functional currency is not  obvious,
management must use judgement based on the entity’s individual facts and circumstances to determine  its
functional currency in a way that gives a fair presentation (i.e. faithfully represents the economic effects  of
transactions, events and conditions). As Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP has an array of differing cash  flows,
economic environments, and lack of autonomy, management has used their judgement in determining  the
functional currency to be USD.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at  the
end of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the  carrying
amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade and other debtors
The LP makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When assessing impairment  of
trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the credit rating of the receivable, the  ageing
profile of receivables and historical experience. The impairments calculated are sensitive to the  estimated
recoverable value and as these will, by definition, seldom equal the actual results, this could result in  future
impairment losses. See note "Debtors: amounts falling due within one year" for the net carrying amount of  the
trade debtors including associated impairment provision.

Impairment of intangible fixed assets
Determining whether intangible fixed assets are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of  the
cash generating unit. The recoverable amount calculation requires the members to estimate the future cash  flows
expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present  value.
The impairments calculated are sensitive to the estimated cash flows and as these will, by definition,  seldom
equal the actual results, this could result in future impairment losses. Each contract is one cash generating  unit.
Details of any impairment loss are set out in the note "Intangible Fixed Assets".

Revenue recognition
Turnover, which arose worldwide, is derived from franchise and programme fees from franchised  hotels.
Turnover is recognised when earned and realised or realisable under the terms of the contract. Turnover  is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and  other
sales taxes.

Application, initiation and other fees, charged when new hotels enter our system, there is a change of  ownership
or contracts are extended, are recognized over the term of the franchise contract.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairments losses.  Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life and assessed  for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation  period
and the amortisation method are reviewed annually.

Development costs are comprised of key money paid to the hotel owner or development commissions paid  to
team members directly related to the acquisition of a hotel agreement. Key money or development commission  is
amortised, with the amortisation included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive  Income,
over the length of the associated agreement which is typically a period of 10 to 20 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to rise  from
its continued use. Gains or losses are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other  Comprehensive
Income in the period of derecognition.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability  or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair  value
through other comprehensive income, or fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss and  Other
Comprehensive Income. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the  financial
asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the business model for managing them. With the exception  of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the LP has applied  the
practical expedient, the LP initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial  asset
not at fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The LP measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to  collect
contractual cash flows, and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments  of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and  are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and  Other
Comprehensive Income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial  assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the LP's statement of financial position) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The LP has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay  the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement and  either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor  retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the LP has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a  pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it  has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control  of
the asset, the LP continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In  that
case, the LP also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability  are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the LP has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower  of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the LP could be  required
to repay.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Impairment of financial assets
The LP recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair  value
through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. ECLs are based on the  difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the LP  expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. For trade receivables and  some
intercompany loans, the LP applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the LP does not  track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.  The
LP has established a provision matrix, that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted  for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The LP considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,  in
certain cases, the LP may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external  information
indicates that the LP is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into  account
any credit enhancements held by the LP. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable  expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through the  Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, loans and borrowings, or payables as appropriate.  All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,  net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - Intercompany loans
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised  cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and  Other
Comprehensive Income when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the EIR amortisation  process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs  that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit  or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or  expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different  terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as  the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the  respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Taxation
Taxation on the profits of the Partnership is solely the responsibility of the members. Consequently neither  the
partnership taxation nor deferred taxation are dealt with in these financial statements. Any foreign tax  deducted
on non-UK income is treated as an administration expense of the LP.

Foreign currencies
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the rates of exchange ruling at the  balance
sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the rate of exchange ruling at the  date
of transaction. Exchange differences are taken into account in arriving at the operating result.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

4. OPERATING PROFIT

This is stated after charging/(crediting):
2023 2022

$ $
Fee income repayable to group undertakings 2,411,106 2,333,698
Foreign tax deducted on non-UK income 295,392 74,963
Fees payable to group undertakings 771,347 1,172,918
Expected credit loss (303,721) 716,525
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 868,890 44,473
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 15,156 29,498

The remuneration of the auditor of £32,075 (2022: £36,542) is borne entirely by Hilton Worldwide Limited.

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL

2023 2022
$ $

Profit/(loss) on disposal of intangible fixed assets - (47,591)

6. INFORMATION IN RELATION TO MEMBERS

2023 2022

The average number of members during the year was 2 2

7. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Development

costs
$

COST
At 1 January 2023 1,056,031
Additions 191,342
Disposals (4,892)
Transfer (312,777 )

At 31 December 2023 929,704

AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2023 79,725
Amortisation for year 15,156
Transfer (4,935)

At 31 December 2023 89,946

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2023 839,758

At 31 December 2022 976,306

During the year, 18 franchise contracts held by the LP were transferred to another entity in the wider group at  net
book value.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

8. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2023 2022

$ $
Trade debtors 302,528 393,769
Amounts owed by group undertakings 32,138,628 30,741,491

32,441,156 31,135,260

Amounts owed by group undertakings are included in amounts due within one year where there are no  specified
repayment terms. Amounts owed by group undertakings are technically repayable on demand and hence  are
included in amounts due within one year.

9. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2023 2022

$ $
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1,969,125 1,861,293
Social security and other taxes 36,729 41,816
Value Added Tax 517,604 526,195
Other creditors 767,471 727,980
Accruals and deferred income 118,800 130,860

3,409,729 3,288,144

Amounts owed to group undertakings are included in amounts due within one year where there are no  specified
repayment terms and there is no fixed repayment schedule in place. While amounts owed to group  undertakings
are technically repayable on demand, and hence are included in amounts due within one year, the members are  of
the opinion (as a result of their group role in relation to the group undertakings amounts are owed to) that in  the
ordinary course of business, repayment within such a timescale would not be required.

10. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE
YEAR

2023 2022
$ $

Accruals and deferred income 3,167,780 3,818,395

11. LOANS AND OTHER DEBTS DUE TO MEMBERS
2023 2022

$ $
Loans from members 2,851,633 2,174,126
Amounts owed to members in respect of profits 1,698,377 677,506

4,550,010 2,851,632

Falling due within one year 4,550,010 2,851,632

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The LP had jointly and severally guaranteed the value added tax liability of other companies within the same  UK
VAT group, which amounted to approximately £6.1m/$7.7m (2022: £7.2m/$8.7m) at 31 December 2023.
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Hilton Worldwide Franchising LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
for the year ended 31 December 2023

13. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The LP has not entered into any capital commitments contracted for but not provided in the financial  statements
at period end.

14. PARENT UNDERTAKING, CONTROLLING PARTY AND CONSOLIDATING ENTITY

The LP's members are Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited and Hilton Worldwide Services Limited.  Both
members are limited companies registered in England and Wales. Hilton Worldwide Manage Limited is  the
controlling party.

The ultimate parent, the only undertaking for which group financial statements were prepared and into which  the
LP is consolidated for 31 December 2023, was Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc., a company incorporated  in
Delaware in the United States of America. These group financial statements are available from the  company
secretary, Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc., 7930 Jones Branch Drive, McLean, Fairfax County, Virginia  VA
22102-3302, United States of America.
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EXHIBIT J 



Exhibit J 
 

RESTAURANT BRANDS 
 

 
Poppy’s™ 
Bronco Blanco™ 
Haley & Bear™ 
The Comeback™ 
Che Notte™ 
Magnolia Smokehouse & Kitchen™ 
 
 
We may add, remove, or modify any of our Restaurant Brands at any time.   
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	1Ex D 2023 Canada Guaranty Form (00289110xA0AA5).DOCX.pdf
	GUARANTY OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
	THIS DOCUMENT AFFECTS AND WAIVES IMPORTANT RIGHTS
	OF THE PERSONS AND ENTITIES SIGNING IT
	5. Postponement of Claims and Subrogation.  All debts and claims against Franchisee now or hereafter held by Guarantor and all of Guarantor’s rights of subrogation (collectively, “Claims”) shall be for Franchisor’s security and as between Guarantor an...
	6. Currency.  All references to money in this Guaranty, unless otherwise specified, shall be in U.S. Dollars, and all amounts payable under this Guaranty shall be paid in U.S. Dollars or such other currency as we direct (collectively, “Original Curren...
	7. Taxes.  If required to pay an Obligation pursuant to this Guaranty, Guarantor shall pay each such Obligation without deduction of any kind for any present or future withholding, sales, use, excise, consumption, VAT and other similar taxes or duties...
	8. Judgment Currency.  If, for purposes of obtaining judgment in any court, it is necessary to convert a sum due to Franchisor under this Guaranty in Original Currency into another currency (“Other Currency”), the parties agree that, to the extent the...
	9. Governing Law.  This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province in which the Hotel is located and the laws of Canada applicable therein.
	10. Jurisdiction and Venue.  The parties agree that any action related to this Guaranty shall be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction in the Province where the Hotel is located.  Guarantor consents to personal jurisdiction and venue in each ...


	1FDD - PEP - USCAMX - Spark_H3.docx.pdf
	ARTICLE 1.  definitions AND ORDER DOCUMENTS
	1.1 Use of Relationship Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement will be deemed to include all of the terms, requirements, covenants and conditions contained in either (i) the Customer’s Franchise Agreement; or (ii) the Customer’s Management Agreem...
	1.2 Definitions. Unless otherwise defined in the body of this Agreement or in Annex 1 – Definitions, all of the defined words and expressions used in this Agreement have the meanings set out in the Relationship Agreement.
	1.3 Ordering Software, Services and Authorized Equipment.  Customer may order Software, Services and Authorized Equipment by submitting an HSS-approved form of order document (“Order Document”) to HSS.  Once accepted by HSS the Order Document becomes ...

	ARTICLE 2.  SOFTWARE, FEES and MASTER AGREEMENTS
	2.1 License to Software.  HSS licenses to Customer the Proprietary Software and sublicenses to Customer the Certified Third Party Software set forth in the Order Document on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
	2.1.1 Customer may be required to execute a separate license agreement directly with one or more third party software providers in connection with Certified Third Party Software not licensed from HSS and such Certified Third Party Software will be lic...
	2.1.2 The Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for which there is no separate license agreement are licensed or sublicensed to Customer under this Agreement on the following terms and conditions:
	2.1.1
	a)  The license is personal, non-exclusive and non-transferable.
	(a) Tb) The Software may be used by Customer solely on the Authorized Equipment and solely for the operation of the Hotel.
	(b) Ec) Except for a single copy of Certified Third Party Software which may be maintained by Customer for archival back-up purposes, Customer will not reproduce or reuse, in whole or in part, any Software, documentation or materials comprising any po...
	(c) Cd) Customer will accept all patches, bug fixes, updates, version upgrades, maintenance and service packs (collectively, “Patches”) from HSS or the relevant Preferred Provider that are deemed necessary by HSS for the proper function and security o...
	(d) Ce) Customer recognizes the confidential and proprietary nature of the Software and agrees to maintain the Software in confidence in accordance with Article 6 (Confidentiality).  Customer will not permit the Software and related documentation to b...

	2.1.2   2.1.3 Customer will not remove or obscure any copyright, trademark, other mark or confidentiality notices affixed to any Software and will not modify it or combine it with or into any other program, data or device.
	(a)   2.1.4 No legal or equitable title to or ownership of any of the Software or any proprietary rights therein are transferred to Customer under this Agreement other than the limited software license specified herein.
	2.1.5  Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Software is owned by HSS, HSS’ Affiliates and/or their respective licensors and that everything in the Software, including all intellectual property, is proprietary to HSS, HSS’s Affiliates and/or their...


	2.3 Master Agreements with Third Parties.  HSS or its designee may, without warranty or representation of any kind, negotiate with any third-party vendor a master services, software or equipment purchase or lease agreement (collectively, the “Master A...
	2.4 Customer Cooperation. Customer will provide HSS and its Affiliates and its and their respective third-party providers with such cooperation relating to HSS’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement as HSS may reasonably request from ti...

	ARTICLE 3.  AUDITS
	ARTICLE 4.  Termination
	4.1 4.1  Termination. HSS may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Customer on any of the following grounds:
	(a)   4.1.1 Customer fails to pay any sums due and payable under this Agreement and fails to cure such failure within the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than ten (10) days;
	(b)   4.1.2 Customer breaches its obligations under Article 6 (Confidentiality);
	(c)   4.1.3 Customer fails to refresh the Authorized Equipment at the Hotel as required by HSS; and
	(d)   4.1.4 Customer breaches any other provision of this Agreement and does not cure that breach within the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than thirty (30) days.
	This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Relationship Agreement.

	4.2 4.2 Customer’s Obligations upon Termination or Expiration.  Upon any such termination the licenses granted to Customer under this Agreement, and the obligations of HSS to provide any Agreement Products and Services will immediately terminate. Cust...
	4.3 4.3  Termination Fees.  Upon termination of this Agreement Customer will pay: (a) all unpaid Fees related to the Agreement Products and Services, Software and Authorized Equipment incurred by Customer; (b) all costs to HSS of all the Agreement Pro...
	4.4 4.4 Suspension of Service.  If Customer fails to comply with the Information System use regulations, rules or policies, or is otherwise in default under this Agreement HSS may, in its sole discretion: (a) disable Customer’s access to or use of all...
	4.5 Limitation on Access.  If HSS determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary or advisable in order to protect in any way and for any reason the Information System, HSS may bar Customer’s access to the Information System and may temporarily...

	ARTICLE 5.  disclaimers
	5.1 HSS makes no representations or warranties as to any Certified Third Party Software, any Authorized Equipment or any Services provided by any Preferred Provider and will have no liability whatsoever for the terms and conditions thereof, performanc...
	5.2 Except as specifically provided in this Article 5 (Disclaimers), HSS disclaims all express or implied warranties with respect to the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services and Information System, including without limitation, any implied warrant...
	5.3 HSS will not be liable for, and makes no warranty or guarantee of, the confidentiality or privacy of any data or other files transmitted to, on, from or through the Agreement Products and Services and/or the Information System and is not responsib...
	5.4 HSS will have no liability to third parties for any claims, losses or damages of any type whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the access to or any use of any of the Agreement Products and Services or any part of the Information Syst...
	5.5 HSS reserves the right for any reason, including, but not limited to, Customer’s failure to comply with the Information System’s use regulations, rules and policies, to temporarily bar access of Customer to the Information System and/or to tempora...
	5.6 HSS may inform governmental authorities or interested third parties if HSS suspects, believes or receives notice that Customer’s data or other files contain legally prohibited information or are being used for illegal purposes.  Customer acknowled...
	5.7 The remedies provided in this Agreement constitute Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies.  In no event will HSS be liable for any special, incidental, consequential or exemplary damages, including without limitation damages for loss of use, lost ...
	5.8 To the extent not prohibited by law, the warranties contained in this Article 5 (Disclaimers) are exclusive and there are no other express or implied warranties or conditions.

	ARTICLE 6.  confidentiality
	Customer will maintain the confidential and proprietary nature of the Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software, Information System, Services and any and all information, documentation and materials of HSS and HSS Affiliates which are discl...

	ARTICLE 7.  PRECEDENCE AND INTERPRETATION
	The terms and conditions of Customer’s use of the Agreement Products and Services and the Information System will be governed exclusively by this Agreement and any applicable Joinder Agreements notwithstanding any different terms submitted by Customer...
	As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given to them below.
	1. “Agreement Products and Services” means, collectively, the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services, subscriptions, Information System, documentation and all other materials identified herein that is or may be made available to Customer pursuant to...
	2. “Authorized Equipment” means equipment that has met HSS standards for operating as part of the Information System and which is made available for purchase or lease under this Agreement or a Joinder Agreement.
	3. “Certified Third Party Software” means software licensed by third parties to Customer or sublicensed by HSS to Customer and listed in the applicable Order Document.
	4. “Fees” means, collectively, all of the fees, charges and expenses chargeable to or due from Customer under this Agreement, including any Order Document.
	5. “Information System” means, collectively, the software, equipment and IT systems made available by HSS and its Affiliates for Customer’s access, use or benefit, including without limitation PEP and the OnQ technology.
	6. “Malicious Code” means any virus, worm, trojan horse, spyware, adware, rootkit, ransomware, scareware, rogueware, backdoor, trap door, logic bomb or similar item intended to cause or capable of causing undesired effects, security breaches and/or da...
	7. “Proprietary Software” means software owned by HSS or its Affiliates.
	8. “Services” means the services provided under this Agreement.
	9. “Software” means the Certified Third-Party Software and Proprietary Software.
	10. Notices. Questions and notices regarding this Order Document should be directed to:


	1Ex C 2023 Canada Franchise Application - Clean.docx.pdf
	HILTON FRANCHISE APPLICATION
	This franchise application (“Application”) includes the following:
	Instructions for Submitting an Application:
	Required Signatures:
	Part 3:  Application Form
	Organizational Chart
	Location of Hotel/Hotel site:
	Development Type:
	Hotel Facilities (existing and/or proposed):
	Hotel Site /Building Information:
	If Hotel or Hotel Site is currently owned by someone else other than Applicant, please indicate:
	If Hotel or Hotel Site will, upon close of purchase, be owned by someone other than Applicant, please indicate:
	Financial information/project timeline
	Estimated Project Costs - New Development Project:
	Estimated Project Costs – Conversion or Change of Ownership (existing hotel):
	Financing/Refinancing Information:
	Deadlines associated with Project or Application:


	2Ex C 2023 Canada Franchise Application - Clean.docx.pdf
	HILTON FRANCHISE APPLICATION
	This franchise application (“Application”) includes the following:
	Instructions for Submitting an Application:
	Required Signatures:
	Part 3:  Application Form
	Organizational Chart
	Location of Hotel/Hotel site:
	Development Type:
	Hotel Facilities (existing and/or proposed):
	Hotel Site /Building Information:
	If Hotel or Hotel Site is currently owned by someone else other than Applicant, please indicate:
	If Hotel or Hotel Site will, upon close of purchase, be owned by someone other than Applicant, please indicate:
	Financial information/project timeline
	Estimated Project Costs - New Development Project:
	Estimated Project Costs – Conversion or Change of Ownership (existing hotel):
	Financing/Refinancing Information:
	Deadlines associated with Project or Application:


	18Ex A - 2023 Canadian FA- FDD Version (Clean).docx.pdf
	1.0 DEFINITIONS
	With respect to subsection (a) above, if a majority of the Guest Rooms were removed from service or regular Hotel operations were suspended during the Measurement Period for ninety (90) or more consecutive days (for any reason whatsoever, including Fo...
	In calculating the System’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees, if a Business Interruption occurred at any System Hotel(s) during the System’s Average Measurement Period, then for such System Hotel(s) the calendar month(s) in which the Business Interruption...

	2.0 GRANT OF LICENSE
	2.1 Non-Exclusive License.   We grant to you and you accept a limited, non-exclusive License to use the Marks and the System during the Term at, and in connection with, the operation of the Hotel in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. [INSERT...
	2.2 Reserved Rights.
	2.2.1 This Agreement does not limit our right, or the right of our Affiliates, to own, license or operate any Other Business of any nature, whether in the lodging or hospitality industry or not, and whether under the Brand, a Competing Brand, or other...
	2.2.2 We may also:
	2.2.2.1 add, alter, delete or otherwise modify elements of the System;
	2.2.2.2 use or license to others all or part of the System;
	2.2.2.3 use the facilities, programs, services and/or personnel used in connection with the System in Other Businesses; and
	2.2.2.4 use the System, the Brand and the Marks in the Other Businesses.

	2.2.3 You acknowledge and agree that you have no rights to, and will not make any claims or demands for, damages or other relief arising from or related to any of the foregoing activities, and you acknowledge and agree that such activities will not gi...

	2.3 Restricted Area Provision.  The Restricted Area Provision is set forth in the Addendum.]

	3.0 TERM
	4.0 OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
	4.1 Training.  We may specify certain required and optional training programs and provide these programs at various locations.  We may charge you for required training services and materials and for optional training services and materials we provide ...
	4.2 Reservation Service.  We will furnish you with the Reservation Service. The Reservation Service will be furnished to you on the same basis as it is furnished to other System Hotels, subject to the provisions of Subsection 13.3 below.
	4.3 Consultation.  We may offer consultation services and advice in areas such as operations, facilities, and marketing, but you will always remain responsible for hiring your employees and the terms and conditions of their employment.  We may establi...
	4.4 Marketing.
	4.4.1 We will publish (either in hard copy or electronic form) and make available to the traveling public a directory that includes System Hotels.  We will include the Hotel in advertising of System Hotels and in international, national and regional m...
	4.4.2 We will use your Monthly Program Fee to pay for various programs to benefit the System, including:
	4.4.2.1 advertising, promotion, publicity, public relations, market research, and other marketing programs;
	4.4.2.2 developing and maintaining directories of and Internet sites for System Hotels;
	4.4.2.3 developing and maintaining the Reservation Service systems and support; and
	4.4.2.4 administrative costs and overhead related to the administration or direction of these projects and programs.

	4.4.3 We will have the sole right to determine how and when we spend these funds, including sole control over the creative concepts, materials and media used in the programs, the placement and allocation of advertising, and the selection of promotiona...
	4.4.4 We may enter into arrangements for development, marketing, operations, administrative, technical and support functions, facilities, programs, and/or other services with any other entity, including any of our Affiliates or third parties.
	4.4.5 You acknowledge that Monthly Program Fees are intended for the benefit of the System and will not simply be used to promote or benefit any one System Hotel or market.  We will have no obligation in administering any activities paid for with the ...
	4.4.6 We may create any programs and allocate monies derived from Monthly Program Fees to any regions or localities, as we consider appropriate in our sole business judgment.  The aggregate of Monthly Program Fees paid to us by System Hotels does not ...
	4.4.7 We are not obligated to expend funds in excess of the amounts received from System Hotels.  If any interest is earned on unused Monthly Program Fees, we will use the interest before using the principal.  The Monthly Program Fee does not cover yo...

	4.5 Inspections/Compliance Assistance.  We will administer a quality assurance program for the System that may include conducting pre-opening and periodic inspections of the Hotel and guest satisfaction surveys and audits to ensure compliance with the...
	4.6 Manual.  We will issue to you or make available in electronic form the Manual and any revisions and updates we may make to the Manual during the Term.  You agree to ensure that your copy of the Manual is, at all times, current and up to date.  If ...
	4.7 Equipment and Supplies.

	5.0 YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES
	5.1 Operational and Other Requirements. You must:
	5.1.1 operate the Hotel twenty-four (24) hours a day after the Opening Date;
	5.1.2 operate the Hotel using the System, in compliance with this Agreement and the Standards, and in such a manner to provide courteous, uniform, respectable and high quality lodging and other services and conveniences to the public. You acknowledge ...
	5.1.3 comply with the Standards, including our specifications for all supplies, products and services.  We may require you to purchase a particular brand of product or service to maintain the common identity and reputation of the Brand, and you will c...
	5.1.4 install, display, and maintain signage displaying or containing the Brand name and other distinguishing characteristics in accordance with Standards we establish for System Hotels;
	5.1.5 comply with Standards for the training of persons involved in the operation of the Hotel, including completion by key personnel of the Hotel of a training program for operation of the Hotel under the System, at a site we designate. You will pay ...
	5.1.6 purchase and maintain property management, revenue management, in-room entertainment, telecommunications, high-speed internet access, and other computer and technology systems that we designate for the System or any portion of the System based o...
	5.1.7 advertise and promote the Hotel and related facilities and services on a local and regional basis in a first-class, dignified manner, using our identity and graphics Standards for all System Hotels, at your cost and expense.  You must submit to ...
	5.1.8 participate in and pay all charges in connection with all required System guest complaint resolution programs, which programs may include chargebacks to the Hotel for guest refunds or credits and all required System quality assurance programs, s...
	5.1.9 honour all nationally recognized credit cards and credit vouchers issued for general credit purposes that we require and enter into all necessary credit card and voucher agreements with the issuers of such cards or vouchers;
	5.1.10 participate in and use the Reservation Service, including any additions, enhancements, supplements or variants we develop or adopt, and honour and give first priority on available rooms to all confirmed reservations referred to the Hotel throug...
	5.1.11 comply with Laws and, on request, give evidence to us of compliance;
	5.1.12 participate in, and promptly pay all fees, commissions and charges associated with, all travel agent commission programs and third-party reservation and distribution services (such as airline reservation systems), all as required by the Standar...
	5.1.13 not engage, directly or indirectly, in any cross-marketing or cross-promotion of the Hotel with any Other Hotel or related business, without our prior written consent. You agree to refer guests and customers, wherever reasonably possible, only ...
	5.1.14 treat as confidential the Standards, the Manual and all other Proprietary Information.  You acknowledge and agree that you do not acquire any interest in the Proprietary Information other than the right to utilize the same in the development an...
	5.1.15 own fee simple title (or long-term ground leasehold interest for a term equal to the Term) to the real property and improvements that comprise the Hotel and the Hotel Site, or alternatively, at our request, cause the fee simple owner, or other ...
	5.1.16 maintain legal possession and control of the Hotel and Hotel Site for the Term and promptly deliver to us a copy of any notice of default you receive from any mortgagee, trustee under any deed of trust, or ground lessor for the Hotel, and on ou...
	5.1.17 not directly or indirectly conduct, or permit by lease, concession arrangement or otherwise, gaming or casino operations in or connected to the Hotel or on the Hotel Site, or otherwise engage in any activity which, in our business judgment, is ...
	5.1.18 not directly or indirectly conduct or permit the marketing or sale of time-shares, vacation ownership, fractional ownership, condominiums or like schemes at, or adjacent to, the Hotel.  This restriction will not prohibit you from directly or in...
	5.1.19 participate in and pay all charges related to our marketing programs (in addition to programs covered by the Monthly Program Fee), all loyalty or frequent guest programs we require, and any optional programs that you opt into;
	5.1.20 honour the terms of any discount or promotional programs (including any loyalty or frequent guest program) that we offer to the public on your behalf, any room rate quoted to any guest at the time the guest makes an advance reservation, and any...
	5.1.21 after the Effective Date, comply with all insurance requirements specified in the Manual at your expense (which includes participating in any insurance program we designate, if applicable), and maintain, at your expense, insurance of the types ...
	5.1.22 not share the business operations and Hotel facilities with any Other Hotel or other business;
	5.1.23 provide to us information we reasonably request about any proposed lease or sublease of commercial space, or other concession arrangements, in the Hotel in the ordinary course of business, so that we may review and approve the nature of the pro...
	5.1.24 promptly provide to us all information we reasonably request about you and your Affiliates (including your respective beneficial owners, officers, directors, shareholders, partners or members) and/or the Hotel, title to the property on which th...
	5.1.25 not engage in any tenant-in-common syndication or Transfer of any tenant-in-common interest in the Hotel or the Hotel Site;
	5.1.26 not, and ensure that your Equity Owners with controlling Equity Interests, Affiliates, employees, and Management Company do not, engage in any conduct which we reasonably determine is likely to adversely reflect upon or affect in any manner the...
	5.1.27 obtain our approval to charge any Mandatory Guest Fees at the Hotel in accordance with the Standards and subject to our requirements for granting such approval; and
	5.1.28 not become a Competitor, or permit your Affiliate to become a Competitor, in the [INSERT FOR OL: luxury [INSERT FOR PY, ES, HFS, QQ: upper upscale [INSERT FOR DT, HGI, HWS, PO, UP: upscale [SELECT FOR HAM, HIS, H2, UAB: upper midscale [SELECT F...
	5.1.29 [INSERT FOR OL, QQ, UP: not, and ensure that your Affiliates do not, allow any Competitor to use Your Marks without our prior written approval.]


	6.0 HOTEL WORK
	6.1 Necessary Consents.
	6.1.1 You must obtain our prior written consent before retaining or engaging any architect, interior designer, general contractor and major subcontractors for the Hotel, which consent  will not be unreasonably withheld.
	6.1.2 Plans and Designs must be submitted to us in accordance with the schedule specified in the Addendum, or any PIP attached to this Agreement.
	6.1.3 You shall not commence any Hotel Work unless and until we have issued our written consent in respect of the Plans and Designs, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.
	6.1.4 Before we approve your Plans, your architect or other certified professional must certify to us that the Plans comply with all Laws related to accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those with disabilities. You are solely responsible for en...
	6.1.5 Once we have provided our consent to the Plans and Designs, no change may be made to the Plans or Designs without our prior written consent.  By consenting to the Plans and Designs or any changes or modifications to the Plans and Designs, we do ...

	6.2 Initial Hotel Work.  You will perform or cause the Hotel Work to be performed in accordance with this Agreement, the approved Plans and Designs, [INSERT FOR PE, RU, EY: the approved Package, the Manual and, any PIP attached to this Agreement.  You...
	6.3 Commencement and Completion of the Hotel Work.
	6.3.1 You will commence the Hotel Work on or before the Construction Commencement Date or Renovation Commencement Date specified in the Addendum or any PIP. You must promptly provide to us evidence satisfactory to us that the Construction Work or Reno...
	6.3.2 The Hotel Work must be completed, and the Hotel must be furnished, equipped, and otherwise made ready to open in accordance with the terms of this Agreement no later than the Construction Work Completion Date or Renovation Work Completion Date s...
	6.3.3 [SELECT FOR ND/CV AND PRE-OPENING COO: Despite your obligation to commence and complete Hotel Work by the agreed deadlines, we agree that the Construction Commencement Date, Renovation Commencement Date, Construction Work Completion Date, or Ren...

	6.4 Opening the Hotel.
	6.4.1 If the Hotel is not open under the Brand on the Effective Date, you will open the Hotel on the Opening Date.  You will not open the Hotel unless and until you receive our written consent to do so pursuant to Subsection 6.4.2 or 6.4.3.
	6.4.2 You will give us at least fifteen (15) days advance notice that you have complied with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Hotel is ready to open.  We will use reasonable efforts within fifteen (15) days after we receive your ...
	6.4.3 We shall be entitled to withhold our consent to the opening of the Hotel until:
	6.4.3.1 your architect, general contractor or other certified professional provides us with a certificate stating that the as-built premises comply with all Laws relating to accessibility/accommodations/facilities for those with disabilities;
	6.4.3.2 you have complied with all the terms and conditions in this Agreement;
	6.4.3.3 your staff has received adequate training and instruction in the manner we require;
	6.4.3.4 you have received authorization to open the Hotel from the relevant governmental authority for the jurisdiction in which the Hotel is located, if applicable; and
	6.4.3.5 all fees and charges you owe to us or our Affiliates have been paid.

	6.4.4 Opening the Hotel before the Opening Date is a material breach of this Agreement.
	6.4.4.1 You will pay us Liquidated Damages in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per day if you open the Hotel before the Opening Date to compensate us for the damage caused by such breach.  You must also reimburse us for all of our costs an...
	6.4.4.2 These Liquidated Damages for damage to our Marks shall not limit or exclude any other remedies we may have at law or in equity.  You acknowledge and agree that the Liquidated Damages payable under this Subsection represent a reasonable estimat...


	6.5 Performance of Agreement.  You must satisfy all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and equip, supply, staff and otherwise make the Hotel ready to open under our Standards. As a result of your efforts to comply with the terms and condit...
	6.6 Hotel Refurbishment and Room Addition.
	6.6.1 We may periodically require you to modernize, rehabilitate and/or upgrade the Hotel’s [SELECT FOR PE, RU, EY: Package, fixtures, equipment, furnishings, furniture, signs, computer hardware and software and related equipment, supplies and other i...
	6.6.2 You may not make any significant changes (including major changes in structure, design or décor) in the Hotel. [SELECT FOR PE, RU, EY: As long as they do not change or affect Package requirements, [m/M]inor redecoration and minor structural chan...
	6.6.3 You may not make any change in the number of approved Guest Rooms in the Addendum without our prior consent. If you wish to add additional Guest Rooms to the Hotel after the Opening Date, you must submit an application to obtain our consent, pay...


	7.0 STAFF AND MANAGEMENT OF THE HOTEL
	8.0 PAYMENT OF FEES
	8.1 Monthly Fees.  Beginning on the Opening Date, you will pay to us for each month (or part of a month, including the final month you operate under this Agreement) the Monthly Fees, each of which is set forth in the Addendum.
	8.2 Calculation and Payment of Fees.
	8.2.1 The Monthly Fees will be calculated in accordance with the accounting methods of the then-current Uniform System of Accounts for the Lodging Industry, or as specified by us in the Manual.  For purposes of this Agreement, the conversion rate into...
	8.2.2 The Monthly Fees will be paid to us at the place and in the manner we designate on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each month and will be accompanied by our standard schedule setting forth in reasonable detail the computation of the Monthl...
	8.2.3 We may require you to transmit the Monthly Fees and all other payments required under this Agreement by wire transfer or other form of electronic funds transfer and to provide the standard schedule in electronic form.  You must bear all costs of...
	8.2.4 In the event of fire or other insured casualty that results in a reduction of Gross Rooms Revenue [INSERT ONLY FOR HFS: and Gross Food and Beverage Revenue], you will determine and pay us, from the proceeds of any business interruption or other ...
	8.2.5 [INSERT ONLY FOR HFS: If Hotel accommodations are bundled with food and beverage arrangements or other services when charged to the customer, you will make a good faith reasonable allocation of the resulting revenues between Gross Rooms Revenue ...

	8.3 Other Fees.  You will timely pay or fund all amounts due us or any of our Affiliates for any invoices or for goods or services purchased by or provided to you or paid by us or any of our Affiliates on your behalf.
	8.4 Taxes.
	8.4.1 All fees and charges payable to us or any of our Affiliates under this Agreement, including the franchise application fee and the Monthly Program Fee (but not the Monthly Royalty Fee), shall be exclusive of Taxes. The Monthly Royalty Fees payabl...
	8.4.2 If you are required by any applicable law to make any deduction or withholding on account of Taxes or otherwise, excluding any Royalty Withholdings, from any payment payable to us or any of our Affiliates, you shall, together with such payment, ...
	8.4.3 You will forward to us, promptly after payment (1) copies of official receipts or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to us showing the full amount of Taxes, including Royalty Withholdings, and/or any other deduction or withholding that has b...

	8.5 Application of Fees.  We may apply any amounts received from you to any amounts due under this Agreement.
	8.6 Guaranty.  If we send you a written notice that you are in default of this Agreement for your failure to timely pay or fund all amounts due us or any of our Affiliates, then we may require, as an additional condition of curing the default, that yo...
	8.7 Set-off.  We may, without prior notice to you, set off any amounts due to us or any of our Affiliates by you or any of your Affiliates against any amounts that we or our Affiliates owe to you or your Affiliates, whether such amounts arise under th...

	9.0 PROPRIETARY RIGHTS
	9.1 Our Proprietary Rights.
	9.1.1 You will not contest, either directly or indirectly during or after the Term:
	9.1.1.1 our (and/or any of our Affiliates’) ownership of, rights to and interest in the System, Brand, Marks and any of their elements or components, including present and future distinguishing characteristics and agree that neither you nor any design...
	9.1.1.2 our sole right to grant licenses to use all or any elements or components of the System;
	9.1.1.3 that we (and/or our Affiliates) are the owner of (or the licensee of, with the right to sub-license) all right, title and interest in and to the Brand and the Marks used in any form and in any design, alone or in any combination, together with...
	9.1.1.4 the validity or ownership of the Marks.

	9.1.2 You acknowledge that these Marks have acquired a secondary meaning or distinctiveness which indicates that the Hotel, Brand and System are operated by or with our approval.  All improvements and additions to, or associated with, the System, all ...
	9.1.3 You agree not to, directly or indirectly, dilute the value of the goodwill attached to the Marks, Brand or the System. You will not apply for or obtain any trademark registration of any of the Marks or any confusingly similar marks in your name ...

	9.2 Trade Name, Use of the Marks.
	9.2.1 Trade Name.
	9.2.1.1 The Hotel will be initially known by the Trade Name set forth in the Addendum.  We may change the Trade Name, the Brand name and/or any of the Marks (but not the Principal Mark), or the way in which any of them (including the Principal Mark) a...
	9.2.1.2 You acknowledge and agree that you are not acquiring the right to use any business names, copyrights, trademarks, trade dress, logos, designs, insignia, emblems, symbols, slogans, distinguishing characteristics, trade names, domain names or ot...


	9.3 Use of Trade Name and Marks.  You will operate under the Marks, using the Trade Name, at the Hotel.  You will not adopt any other names or marks in operating the Hotel without our approval.  You will not, without our prior written consent, use any...
	9.3.1 your corporate, partnership, business or trade name;
	9.3.2 any Internet-related name (including a domain name);
	9.3.3 or any business operated separately from the Hotel, including the name or identity of developments adjacent to or associated with the Hotel.

	9.4 Trademark Disputes.
	9.4.1 You will immediately notify us of any infringement or dilution of or challenge to your use of any of the Marks and will not, absent a court order or our prior written consent, communicate with any other person regarding any such infringement, di...
	9.4.2 You appoint us as your exclusive, true and lawful attorney-in-fact, to prosecute, defend and/or settle all disputes, involving our Marks at our sole option. You will grant to the persons designated by us a special power of attorney, as broad as ...

	9.5 Web Sites.
	9.5.1 You may not register, own, or maintain any Sites that relate to the Network, or the Hotel, or that include the Marks. The only domain names, Sites, or Site contractors that you may use relating to the Hotel or this Agreement are those we assign ...
	9.5.2 Any use of the Marks on any Site must conform to our requirements, including the identity and graphics Standards for all System hotels.  Given the changing nature of this technology, we have the right to withhold our approval, and to withdraw an...

	9.6 Covenant.
	9.6.1 You agree, as a direct covenant with us and our Affiliates, that you will comply with all of the provisions of this Agreement related to the manner, terms and conditions of the use of the Marks and the termination of any right on your part to us...
	9.6.2 If you engage in such non-compliance or unauthorized and/or improper use of the System or the Marks during or after the Term, we and any of our applicable Affiliates, along with the successors and assigns of each, will be entitled to both interl...


	10.0 REPORTS, RECORDS, AUDITS, AND PRIVACY
	10.1 Reports.
	10.1.1 At our request, you will prepare and deliver to us the Reports containing the Operational Information (and any other information we reasonably require) in the form, manner and time frame we require.  At a minimum, by the fifteenth (15th) day of...
	10.1.2 At our request, you will certify the Reports as accurate in the manner we require.  You must permit us to inspect your books and records at all reasonable times.

	10.2 Maintenance of Records.  You will prepare, on a current basis, (and preserve for no less than the greater of four (4) years or the time period stated in our record retention requirements), complete and accurate records concerning Gross Rooms Reve...
	10.3 Audit.
	10.3.1 We may require you to have the Gross Rooms Revenue, fees or other monies due to us computed and certified as accurate by an independent chartered accountant.  During the Term and for two (2) years thereafter, we and our authorized agents have t...
	10.3.2 If any inspection or audit reveals that you understated or underpaid any payment due to us, you will promptly pay to us the deficiency plus interest from the date each payment was due until paid at the interest rate set forth in Section 16.15 o...
	10.3.3 If the audit or inspection reveals that the underpayment is willful, or is for five percent (5%) or more of the total amount owed for the period being inspected, you will also reimburse us for all inspection and audit costs, including reasonabl...

	10.4 Ownership of Information.  All information that we provide to you, including but not limited to Personal Information, for your use in connection with operating the Hotel during the Term is our property. You may not use any such information after ...
	10.5 Privacy and Data Protection.  You will:
	10.5.1 comply with all applicable Privacy Laws;
	10.5.2 comply with all Standards that relate to Privacy Laws and the privacy and security of Personal Information;
	10.5.3 refrain from any action or inaction that could cause us or our Affiliates to breach any Privacy Laws;
	10.5.4 do and execute, or arrange to be done and executed, each act, document and thing we deem necessary in our business judgment to keep us and our Affiliates in compliance with the Privacy Laws; and
	10.5.5 immediately report to us the theft or loss of Personal Information (other than the Personal Information of your own officers, directors, shareholders, employees or service providers).


	11.0 CONDEMNATION AND CASUALTY
	11.1 Condemnation.  You must immediately inform us of any proposed taking of any portion of the Hotel by eminent domain.  If, in our business judgment, the taking is significant enough to render the continued operation of the Hotel in accordance with ...
	11.2 Casualty.
	11.2.1 You must immediately inform us if the Hotel is damaged by fire or other casualty or event of Force Majeure. If the damage or repair requires closing the Hotel, you may choose to repair or rebuild the Hotel according to the Standards, provided y...
	11.2.2 You and we each have the right to terminate this Agreement if you elect not to repair or rebuild the Hotel as set forth in Subsection 11.2.1, provided the terminating Party gives the other Party sixty (60) days written notice.  You are not requ...

	11.3 No Extensions of Term. Nothing in this Section 11 will extend the Term.

	12.0 TRANSFERS
	12.1 Our Transfer.
	12.1.1 We may assign or Transfer this Agreement or any of our rights, duties, or assets under this Agreement, by operation of law or otherwise, to any person or legal entity without your consent, provided that any such person or legal entity shall be ...
	12.1.2 If we assign this Agreement to a third party who expressly assumes our obligations under this Agreement, we will no longer have any performance or other obligations to you under this Agreement and your right to use any programs, rights or servi...

	12.2 Your Transfer.  You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties in this Agreement are personal to you and that we are entering into this Agreement in reliance on your business skill, financial capacity, and the personal character of you...
	12.2.1 Permitted Transfers. We will permit you or any Equity Owner to engage in the Permitted Transfers set forth in this Subsection 12.2.1 if the Permitted Transfer meets the listed requirements. If a Permitted Transfer under Subsection 12.2.1.2 (req...
	12.2.1.1 Permitted Transfers That Do Not Require Notice or Consent.  We will permit you or any Equity Owner to engage in the following Permitted Transfers without giving notice or obtaining our consent if the Permitted Transfer meets the listed requir...
	12.2.1.1.1 Privately Held Equity Interests: Less than 50% Change.  An Equity Interest that is not publicly traded may be Transferred if the transferee Equity Owner will own less than fifty percent (50%) of the Equity Interests, in total, immediately a...
	12.2.1.1.2 Publicly Traded Equity Interests.  A Publicly Traded Equity Interest may be Transferred.
	12.2.1.1.3 Institutional Investment Funds. [IF APPLICABLE] You may Transfer Equity Interests within [Insert Fund Entities] (collectively, the “Fund Entities”) and Equity Interests in you to new fund entities or new managed accounts (collectively, “Fut...

	12.2.1.2 Permitted Transfers That Require Notice and Our Consent.  We will permit you or any Equity Owner to engage in the following Permitted Transfers if the Permitted Transfer meets the listed requirements. For Permitted Transfers under this Subsec...
	12.2.1.2.1 Affiliate Transfer. You or any Equity Owner may Transfer an Equity Interest or this Agreement to an Affiliate.
	12.2.1.2.2 Transfers to a Family Member or Trust.  If you or any Equity Owner as of the Effective Date are a natural person, you and such Equity Owner may Transfer an Equity Interest or this Agreement to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, child...
	12.2.1.2.3 Transfer On Death.  On the death of Franchisee or an Equity Owner who is a natural person, this Agreement or the Equity Interest of the deceased Equity Owner may Transfer in accordance with such person’s will or, if such person dies intesta...


	12.2.2 Change of Ownership Transfer.  A Change of Ownership Transfer is any  Transfer that will result in a change of Control of you, the Hotel or the Hotel Site, or is not otherwise described in Subsection 12.2.1.  We will have sixty (60) days from o...
	12.2.2.1 Transferee submits a completed and signed Change of Ownership Application, pays our then-current franchise application fee, executes our then-current form of franchise agreement, and all required ancillary documents. If all conditions to our ...
	12.2.2.2 you are not in default of this Agreement or any other agreements with us or our Affiliates;
	12.2.2.3 you or Transferee pay to us, on or before the date of Closing, the PIP Fee, and all amounts due to us and our Affiliates through the date of the Closing. We will estimate the amounts due to us through the date of Closing, which you and the Tr...
	12.2.2.4 you conclude to our satisfaction, or provide adequate security for, any suit, action, or proceeding pending or threatened against you, us or any of our Affiliates with respect to the Hotel, which may result in liability on the part of us or a...
	12.2.2.5 you, Transferee and/or Equity Owner(s) of Transferee, submit to us all information related to the Transfer that we require;
	12.2.2.6 Transferee meets our then-current business requirements for new franchisees; and
	12.2.2.7 Transferee agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend us and our Affiliates against any inquiry, investigation, suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or in connection with any fees or costs charged to patrons or guests by you.


	12.3 Public Offering or Private Placement.
	12.3.1 Any offering by you of Securities requires our review if you use the Marks, or refer to us or this Agreement in your offering.  All materials required by any Law for the offer or sale of those Securities must be submitted to us for review at le...
	12.3.2 You must submit to us a non-refundable Five Thousand Dollar ($5,000) processing fee with the offering documents and pay any additional costs we may incur in reviewing your documents, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
	12.3.3 We have the right to approve any description of this Agreement or of your relationship with us, or any use of the Marks, contained in any prospectus, offering memorandum or other communications or materials you use in the sale or offer of any S...
	12.3.4 You may not sell any Securities unless you clearly disclose to all purchasers and offerees that we,  our Affiliates,  and our or their respective officers, directors, agents or employees: (a) will not in any way be deemed an issuer or underwrit...
	12.3.5 You must indemnify, defend and hold the Indemnified Parties free and harmless of and from any and all liabilities, costs, damages, claims or expenses arising out of or related to the sale or offer of any of your Securities to the same extent as...

	12.4 Mortgages and Pledges to Lending Institutions.
	12.4.1 You or an Equity Owner may mortgage or pledge the Hotel or an Equity Interest to a lender that finances the acquisition, development or operation of the Hotel, without notifying us or obtaining our consent.
	12.4.2 You may request a “lender comfort letter” on behalf of your lender, which we will issue in a form satisfactory to us, subject to our right to charge our then-current non-refundable processing fee.


	13.0 TERMINATION
	13.1 Termination with Opportunity to Cure.   We may terminate this Agreement by written notice to you and opportunity to cure at any time before its expiration on any of the following grounds:
	13.1.1 You fail to pay us any sums due and owing to us or our Affiliates under this Agreement or to pay or fund any amounts due under any of Your Hotel Agreements within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less than ten (10) da...
	13.1.2 You fail to commence or complete the Hotel Work by the applicable deadline date, including any extensions, or fail to open the Hotel on the Opening Date, and do not cure that default within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall n...
	13.1.3 You do not purchase or maintain insurance required by this Agreement or do not reimburse us for our purchase of insurance on your behalf within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less than ten (10) days; or
	13.1.4 You fail to comply with any other provision of this Agreement, the Manual or any Standard and do not cure that default within the cure period set forth in the notice, which shall not be less than thirty (30) days.

	13.2 Immediate Termination by Us.  We may immediately terminate this Agreement on notice to you and without any opportunity to cure the default if:
	13.2.1 after curing any material breach of this Agreement or the Standards, you engage in the same non-compliance within any consecutive twenty-four (24) month period, whether or not the non-compliance is corrected after notice, which pattern of non-c...
	13.2.2 you receive three (3) notices of material default in any twelve (12) month period, even if the defaults have been cured;
	13.2.3 you fail to pay debts as they become due or admit in writing your inability to pay your debts severally as they become due;
	13.2.4 you (a) make or are deemed to make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors under the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act or if a petition is filed against you; or (b) are declared or adjudicated bankrupt, or if an application is made agains...
	13.2.5 you or your Guarantor lose possession or the right to possession of all or a significant part of the Hotel or Hotel Site for any reason other than those described in Section 11;
	13.2.6 you fail to operate the Hotel for five (5) consecutive days, unless the failure to operate is due to an event of Force Majeure, provided that you have taken reasonable steps to minimize the impact of such events;
	13.2.7 you contest in any court or proceeding our ownership of the System or any part of the System or the validity of any of the Marks;
	13.2.8 you or any Equity Owner with a controlling Equity Interest, or any of your Affiliates, employees, or Management Company, engage in conduct that we reasonably determine is likely to adversely reflect upon or affect in any manner the reputation, ...
	13.2.9 you conceal revenues, maintain false books and records of accounts, submit false reports or information to us or otherwise attempt to defraud us;
	13.2.10   any Transfer is not in compliance with Section 12 and its subparts;
	13.2.11   you, your Affiliate or any Guarantor become a Sanctioned Person or are owned or controlled by a Sanctioned Person or fail to comply with the provisions of Subsection 16.13;
	13.2.12   information is disclosed involving you or your Affiliates, which, in our business judgment, is likely to adversely reflect on or affect in any manner, any gaming licenses or permits held by us or our Affiliates or the then-current stature of...
	13.2.13   any Guarantor breaches its guaranty to us;
	13.2.14   a threat or danger to public health or safety results from the construction, maintenance, or operation of the Hotel;
	13.2.15 you, your Affiliate or a Guarantor become a Competitor except as otherwise permitted by Subsection 5.1.28; or
	13.2.16  any of Your Hotel Agreements is terminated based on a breach or default by you or your Affiliates.

	13.3 Interim Remedies.  If we send you a written notice that you are in default of this Agreement, we may elect to impose an Interim Remedy, including the suspension of our obligations under this Agreement and/or our or our Affiliates’ obligations und...
	13.3.1 We may suspend the Hotel from the Reservation Service and any reservation and/or website services provided through or by us.  We may remove the listing of the Hotel from any directories or advertising we publish. If we suspend the Hotel from th...
	13.3.2 We may disable all or any part of the software provided to you under Your Hotel Agreements and/or may suspend any one or more of the information technology and/or network services that we provide or support under Your Hotel Agreements.  We may ...
	13.3.3 We may revoke any financial accommodations (including but not limited to any Monthly Fee discounts, fee ramps or fee waivers) that we have granted and charge you the then-current standard fee or charge that would have otherwise applied absent t...
	13.3.4 You agree that our exercise of the right to Interim Remedies will not result in actual or constructive termination or abandonment of this Agreement, and that our right to Interim Remedies is in addition to, and apart from, any other right or re...

	13.4 Liquidated Damages on Termination.
	13.4.1 Calculation of Liquidated Damages.  You acknowledge and agree that the premature termination of this Agreement will cause substantial damage to us.  You agree that Liquidated Damages are not a penalty, but represent a reasonable estimate of the...
	13.4.1.1 [DELETE IF COO/RL and insert: INTENTIONALLY DELETED] If termination occurs before you begin the Hotel Work and you or any Guarantor (or your or any Guarantor’s Affiliates) directly or indirectly, enter into a franchise, license, management, l...
	13.4.1.2  [DELETE IF COO/RL and insert: INTENTIONALLY DELETED] If termination occurs after you begin the Hotel Work but before the Opening Date, unless your failure to complete the Hotel Work was the result of Force Majeure you will pay us Liquidated ...
	13.4.1.3 If termination occurs after the Opening Date but before the second anniversary of the Opening Date, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to [SELECT FOR DT, ES, H2, HAM, HFS, HGI, HWS the greater of: (a) the Hotel’s Average Mo...
	13.4.1.4  If termination occurs after the second anniversary of the Opening Date but before the final sixty (60) calendar months of the Term, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an amount equal to the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied ...
	13.4.1.5 If there are fewer than sixty (60) months remaining in the Term on the date of termination, you will pay us Liquidated Damages in an amount  equal to the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by the number of months remaining in the...

	13.4.2 Payment of Liquidated Damages.  Payment of Liquidated Damages is due thirty (30) days following termination of this Agreement or on demand.

	[SELECT FOR OL:
	13.4 Termination Fee on Termination
	13.4.1 Termination Fee.  You agree that if this Agreement is terminated by us under this Section 13, you will pay a termination Fee equal to:
	(a) $15,000 multiplied by the number of approved guest Rooms at the Hotel if termination occurs (i) before you begin the Hotel Work, and you or any Guarantor (or your or any Guarantor’s Affiliates) directly or indirectly, enter into a franchise, licen...
	(b) The greater of: (i) the Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees multiplied by sixty (60); or (ii) an amount equal to $15,000 multiplied by the number of approved Guest Rooms at the Hotel, if termination occurs on or after the Opening Date but before ...
	(c) The Hotel’s Average Monthly Royalty Fees (i) multiplied by sixty (60) if termination occurs after the second anniversary of the Opening Date but before the final sixty (60) calendar months of the Term, or (ii) multiplied by the number of months re...
	You acknowledge and agree that this Termination Fee is an agreed fee and does not represent a penalty or liquidated damages.  You further acknowledge and agree that this Termination Fee does not constitute or create, expressly or impliedly, any right ...
	13.4.2 Payment of Termination Fee.  You must pay the Termination Fee within (30) days after termination of this Agreement or on demand.]
	13.5 Actual Damages Under Special Circumstances.  [SELECT FOR ALL BRANDS EXCEPT OL: You acknowledge that the Liquidated Damages described in Subsection 14.4 may be inadequate to compensate us for additional harm we may suffer, by reason of greater dif...
	13.5.1 Within twelve (12) months of each other, [SELECT FOR PY, QQ, DT, OL, ES, HFS: two (2)] [SELECT FOR HGI, H2, HWS, PO, UP, EY: five (5)] [SELECT FOR HAM, HIS, PE, RU, UAB: seven (7)] or more franchise agreements for the Brand between yourself (or...
	13.5.2 This Agreement terminates due to an unapproved Transfer either to a (i) Competitor or (ii) buyer that converts the Hotel to a Competing Brand within two (2) years from the date this Agreement terminates.

	13.6 Your Obligations on Termination or Expiration. On termination or expiration of this Agreement, you will immediately:
	13.6.1 pay all sums due and owing to us or any of our Affiliates, including any expenses incurred by us in obtaining injunctive relief for the enforcement of this Agreement;
	13.6.2 cease operating the Hotel as a System Hotel and cease using the System;
	13.6.3 cease using the Marks, the Trade Name, and any confusingly similar names, marks, trade dress systems, insignia, symbols, or other rights, procedures, and methods.  You will deliver all goods and materials containing the Marks to us and we will ...
	13.6.4 cease representing yourself as then or formerly a System Hotel or affiliated with the Brand or the Network;
	13.6.5 return all copies of the Manual and any other Proprietary Information to us;
	13.6.6 cancel all assumed name or equivalent registrations relating to your use of any Mark, notify the telephone company and all listing agencies and directory publishers including Internet domain name granting authorities, Internet service providers...
	13.6.7 irrevocably assign and transfer to us (or to our designee) all of your right, title and interest in any domain name listings and registrations that contain any reference to our Marks, System, Network or Brand; notify the applicable domain name ...


	14.0 INDEMNITY
	14.1 Beginning on the Effective Date, you must indemnify the Indemnified Parties against, and hold them harmless from, all losses, costs, liabilities, damages, claims, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees, costs and other ex...
	14.1.1 any breach by you of this Agreement, the Manual or the Standards;
	14.1.2 any act or omission of you or your officers, employees, Affiliates, associates or agents in any way arising out of or relating to this Agreement;
	14.1.3 any claimed occurrence at the Hotel including personal injury, death or property damage;
	14.1.4 your alleged or actual infringement or violation of any copyright, industrial design, patent, service mark, trademark or other proprietary right owned or controlled by third parties;
	14.1.5 your alleged or actual violation or breach of any contract (including any group sales agreement for the System), any Law, or any industry standard;
	14.1.6 any business conducted by you or a third party in, on or about the Hotel or Hotel Site;
	14.1.7 your failure to comply with Subsection 16.13, including a breach of the representations set forth therein; and
	14.1.8 any inquiry, investigation, suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or in connection with any fees or costs charged to patrons or guests by you, and if you acquired the Hotel in a Change of Ownership Transfer, by the previous owner (your tra...


	15.0 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES
	15.1 No Agency Relationship.  You are an independent contractor.  Neither Party is the legal representative or agent of the other Party. Neither Party has the power to obligate the other Party for any purpose.  You acknowledge that: (a) we do not dire...
	15.2 Notices Concerning Your Independent Status.  All contracts for the Hotel’s operations and services at the Hotel will be in your name or in the name of your Management Company.  You will not enter into or sign any contracts in our name or any of o...

	16.0 MISCELLANEOUS
	16.1 Severability and Interpretation.
	16.1.1 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, void or voidable, that provision will be ineffective only to the extent of the prohibition, without in any way invalidating or affecting the remaining provisions of this Agreement,...
	16.1.2 This Agreement will be interpreted without interpreting any provision in favor of or against either Party by reason of the drafting of the provision, or either of our positions relative to the other.
	16.1.3 Any covenant, term or provision of this Agreement that provides for continuing obligations after the expiration or termination of this Agreement will survive any expiration or termination.

	16.2 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the province in which the Hotel is located and the laws of Canada applicable therein.
	16.3 Exclusive Benefit.  This Agreement is exclusively for our and your benefit, and none of the obligations of you or us in this Agreement will run to, or be enforceable by, any other party (except for any rights we assign or delegate to one of our A...
	16.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and all of its attachments, documents, schedules, exhibits, and any other information specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference (including any representations in any franchise disclosure document...
	16.5 Amendment and Waiver.
	16.5.1 No change, termination, or attempted waiver or cancellation of any provision of this Agreement will bind us unless it is in writing, specifically designated as an amendment or waiver, and signed by one of our officers.  We may condition our agr...
	16.5.2 No failure by us or by any of our Affiliates to exercise any power given us under this Agreement or to insist on strict compliance by you with any of your obligations, and no custom or practice at variance with the terms of this Agreement, will...

	16.6 Consent; Business Judgment.
	16.6.1 Wherever our consent or approval is required in this Agreement, unless the provision specifically indicates otherwise, we have the right to withhold our approval at our option, in our business judgment, taking into consideration our assessment ...
	16.6.2 You agree not to make a claim for money damages based on any allegation that we have unreasonably withheld or delayed any consent or approval to a proposed act by you under the terms of this Agreement.  You also may not claim damages by way of ...

	16.7 Notices.  All notices under this Agreement must be in writing.
	16.7.1 Principal Legal Correspondent (“PLC”). You must designate a single Person to be your duly authorized representative to issue and receive notices as described in Subsection 16.7.2. Your designee will be your PLC under this Agreement. You may hav...
	16.7.2 Notices of Default and Termination, or Threatened Litigation. Any notice from you or from us declaring default of a provision of this Agreement, or potential or final termination of this Agreement, must be delivered in person, or by prepaid ove...

	16.8 General Release.  You, on your own behalf and on behalf of, as applicable, your officers, directors, managers, employees, heirs, administrators, executors, agents and representatives and their respective successors and assigns hereby release, rem...
	16.9 Remedies Cumulative.  The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative.  These remedies are not exclusive of any other remedies that you or we may be entitled to in case of any breach or threatened breach of the terms and provisions of this...
	16.10 Economic Conditions Not a Defence.  Neither general economic downturn or conditions nor your own financial inability to perform the terms of this Agreement will be a defence to an action by us or one of our Affiliates for your breach of this Agr...
	16.11 Representations and Warranties.  You warrant, represent and agree that all statements in your franchise application in anticipation of the execution of this Agreement, and all other documents and information submitted to us by you or on your beh...
	16.11.1 you have independently investigated the risks of operating the Hotel under the Brand, including current and potential market conditions and competitive factors and risks, and have made an independent evaluation of all such matters and reviewed...
	16.11.2 neither we nor our representatives have made any promises, representations or agreements other than those provided in the Agreement or in our franchise disclosure document provided to you in connection with the offer of this Agreement, if appl...
	16.11.3 you have the full legal power authority and legal right to enter into this Agreement;
	16.11.4 this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation and your entry into, performance and observation of this Agreement will not constitute a breach or default of any agreement to which you are a party or of any Law;
	16.11.5 if you are a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, you are, and throughout the Term will be, duly formed and validly existing, in good standing in the jurisdiction in which you are organized, and are and will be authorized t...
	16.11.6 no Equity Interest has been issued, converted to, or is held as, bearer shares or any other form of ownership, for which there is no traceable record of the identity of the legal and beneficial owner of such Equity Interest; and
	16.11.7 you hereby indemnify and hold us harmless from any breach of these representations and warranties.  These warranties and representations will survive the termination of this Agreement.

	16.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which will be considered an original, and the Parties agree to conduct the transaction by electronic means.
	16.13 Sanctioned Persons and Anti-bribery Representations and Warranties.
	16.13.1 You represent, warrant and covenant to us and our Affiliates, on a continuing basis, that:
	16.13.1.1 neither you, nor any Person having Control over you or the Hotel, is a Sanctioned Person;
	16.13.1.2 you have not and will not obtain, receive, transfer or provide any funds, property, debt, equity, or other financing related to this Agreement and the Hotel or Hotel Site to/from a Sanctioned Person;
	16.13.1.3 neither you, nor any Person having  Control over you or the Hotel, has been convicted of, pleaded guilty to, or otherwise been adjudged liable for any violation of laws, ordinances, rules or regulations that pertain to bribery or corruption,...
	16.13.1.4 any funds received or paid in connection with entry into or performance of this Agreement have not been and will not be derived from illegal sources or activities, or commingled with illegal funds, and that you are not engaging in this trans...
	16.13.1.5 in preparation for and in entering into this Agreement, neither you nor any Person having Control over you or the Hotel, has made any Improper Payment or engaged in any acts or transactions otherwise in violation of any applicable Anti-Corru...
	16.13.1.6 neither you, nor any Person having Control over you or  the Hotel who may be considered a Government Entity or Government Official , improperly uses their status or position to influence official actions or decisions or to secure any imprope...
	16.13.1.7 you will assure that your respective appointed agents including any Management Company in relation to this Agreement comply in all material respects with the representations, warranties, and covenants described in this Subsection 16.13.

	16.13.2 You will notify us in writing immediately on the occurrence of any event which would render the foregoing representations and warranties of this Subsection 16.13 incorrect.
	16.13.3 If we believe that you may not be in compliance with any of the covenants, representations and warranties set forth in this Subsection 16.13, we will advise you of our belief, and you must (a) cooperate with any and all reasonable information ...

	16.14 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If either Party is required to employ legal counsel or to incur other expenses to enforce any provision of this Agreement or defend any claim by the other, then the prevailing Party in any resulting dispute will be en...
	16.15 Interest.  Any sum owed to us or our Affiliates by you or paid by us or our Affiliates on your behalf will bear interest from the date due until paid by you at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum or, if lower, the maximum lawful rate.
	16.16 Successors and Assigns.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the permitted successors and assigns of the Parties.
	16.17 Our Delegation of Rights and Responsibility.  In addition to the rights granted to us in Section 4 and Subsection 13.1 of this Agreement, we reserve the right to delegate to one or more of our Affiliates at any time, any and all of our rights, o...
	16.18 Currency.  All references to money amounts in this Agreement, unless otherwise specified, shall be in U.S. dollars.  Furthermore, all amounts payable hereunder will be paid in U.S. dollars, or such other currency as we direct.
	16.19 Not Withhold Payment. You agree that you shall not on the grounds of the alleged non-performance by us of any of our obligations under this Agreement or under any other agreement between us, withhold payment of any amounts due to us or any of ou...
	16.20 Quebec Rider.  The Parties hereto confirm that it is their wish that this Agreement, as well as all other documents relating hereto, including all notices, have been and shall be drawn up in the English language only.  Les parties aux présentes ...
	16.21 Privacy.  You expressly permit us to disclose in our disclosure document (whether required by law or made available on a voluntary basis) and other documents required by law, personal information related to you and the Hotel, including your name...
	16.22 Confidentiality of Negotiated Terms.  You agree that you will not disclose to any Person the content of any negotiated terms of this Agreement or Your Hotel Agreements without our prior consent except: (1) as required by Law; (2) as may be requi...

	17.0 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES
	18.0 NOTICE OF INTENT TO MARKET
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	ARTICLE 1.  definitions AND ORDER DOCUMENTS
	1.1 Use of Relationship Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement will be deemed to include all of the terms, requirements, covenants and conditions contained in either (i) the Customer’s Franchise Agreement; or (ii) the Customer’s Management Agreem...
	1.2 Definitions. Unless otherwise defined in the body of this Agreement or in Annex 1 – Definitions, all of the defined words and expressions used in this Agreement have the meanings set out in the Relationship Agreement.
	1.3 Ordering Software, Services and Authorized Equipment.  Customer may order Software, kServices and Authorized Equipment by submitting an HSS-approved form of order document (“Order Document”) to HSS.  Once accepted by HSS the Order Document becomes...

	ARTICLE 2.  SOFTWARE, FEES and MASTER AGREEMENTS
	2.1 License to Software.  HSS licenses to Customer the Proprietary Software and sublicenses to Customer the Certified Third Party Software set forth in the Order Document on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
	2.1.1 Customer may be required to execute a separate license agreement directly with one or more third party software providers in connection with Certified Third Party Software not licensed from HSS and such Certified Third Party Software will be lic...
	2.1.2 The Proprietary Software and Certified Third Party Software for which there is no separate license agreement are licensed or sublicensed to Customer under this Agreement on the following terms and conditions:
	2.1.1
	a)  The license is personal, non-exclusive and non-transferable.
	(a) Tb) The Software may be used by Customer solely on the Authorized Equipment and solely for the operation of the Hotel.
	(b) Ec) Except for a single copy of Certified Third Party Software which may be maintained by Customer for archival back-up purposes, Customer will not reproduce or reuse, in whole or in part, any Software, documentation or materials comprising any po...
	(c) Cd) Customer will accept all patches, bug fixes, updates, version upgrades, maintenance and service packs (collectively, “Patches”) from HSS or the relevant Preferred Provider that are deemed necessary by HSS for the proper function and security o...
	(d) Ce) Customer recognizes the confidential and proprietary nature of the Software and agrees to maintain the Software in confidence in accordance with Article 6 (Confidentiality).  Customer will not permit the Software and related documentation to b...

	2.1.2   2.1.3 Customer will not remove or obscure any copyright, trademark, other mark or confidentiality notices affixed to any Software and will not modify it or combine it with or into any other program, data or device.
	(a)   2.1.4 No legal or equitable title to or ownership of any of the Software or any proprietary rights therein are transferred to Customer under this Agreement other than the limited software license specified herein.
	2.1.5  Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Software is owned by HSS, HSS’ Affiliates and/or their respective licensors and that everything in the Software, including all intellectual property, is proprietary to HSS, HSS’s Affiliates and/or their...


	2.3 Master Agreements with Third Parties.  HSS or its designee may, without warranty or representation of any kind, negotiate with any third-party vendor a master services, software or equipment purchase or lease agreement (collectively, the “Master A...
	2.4 Customer Cooperation. Customer will provide HSS and its Affiliates and its and their respective third-party providers with such cooperation relating to HSS’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement as HSS may reasonably request from ti...

	ARTICLE 3.  AUDITS
	ARTICLE 4.  Termination
	4.1 4.1  Termination. HSS may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Customer on any of the following grounds:
	(a)   4.1.1 Customer fails to pay any sums due and payable under this Agreement and fails to cure such failure within the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than ten (10) days;
	(b)   4.1.2 Customer breaches its obligations under Article 6 (Confidentiality);
	(c)   4.1.3 Customer fails to refresh the Authorized Equipment at the Hotel as required by HSS; and
	(d)   4.1.4 Customer breaches any other provision of this Agreement and does not cure that breach within the cure period set forth in the notice, which will not be less than thirty (30) days.
	This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Relationship Agreement.

	4.2 4.2 Customer’s Obligations upon Termination or Expiration.  Upon any such termination the licenses granted to Customer under this Agreement, and the obligations of HSS to provide any Agreement Products and Services will immediately terminate. Cust...
	4.3 4.3  Termination Fees.  Upon termination of this Agreement Customer will pay: (a) all unpaid Fees related to the Agreement Products and Services, Software and Authorized Equipment incurred by Customer; (b) all costs to HSS of all the Agreement Pro...
	4.4 4.4 Suspension of Service.  If Customer fails to comply with the Information System use regulations, rules or policies, or is otherwise in default under this Agreement HSS may, in its sole discretion: (a) disable Customer’s access to or use of all...
	4.5 Limitation on Access.  If HSS determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary or advisable in order to protect in any way and for any reason the Information System, HSS may bar Customer’s access to the Information System and may temporarily...

	ARTICLE 5.  disclaimers
	5.1 HSS makes no representations or warranties as to any Certified Third Party Software, any Authorized Equipment or any Services provided by any Preferred Provider and will have no liability whatsoever for the terms and conditions thereof, performanc...
	5.2 Except as specifically provided in this Article 5 (Disclaimers), HSS disclaims all express or implied warranties with respect to the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services and Information System, including without limitation, any implied warrant...
	5.3 HSS will not be liable for, and makes no warranty or guarantee of, the confidentiality or privacy of any data or other files transmitted to, on, from or through the Agreement Products and Services and/or the Information System and is not responsib...
	5.4 HSS will have no liability to third parties for any claims, losses or damages of any type whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the access to or any use of any of the Agreement Products and Services or any part of the Information Syst...
	5.5 HSS reserves the right for any reason, including, but not limited to, Customer’s failure to comply with the Information System’s use regulations, rules and policies, to temporarily bar access of Customer to the Information System and/or to tempora...
	5.6 HSS may inform governmental authorities or interested third parties if HSS suspects, believes or receives notice that Customer’s data or other files contain legally prohibited information or are being used for illegal purposes.  Customer acknowled...
	5.7 The remedies provided in this Agreement constitute Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies.  In no event will HSS be liable for any special, incidental, consequential or exemplary damages, including without limitation damages for loss of use, lost ...
	5.8 To the extent not prohibited by law, the warranties contained in this Article 5 (Disclaimers) are exclusive and there are no other express or implied warranties or conditions.

	ARTICLE 6.  confidentiality
	Customer will maintain the confidential and proprietary nature of the Proprietary Software, Certified Third Party Software, Information System, Services and any and all information, documentation and materials of HSS and HSS Affiliates which are discl...

	ARTICLE 7.  PRECEDENCE AND INTERPRETATION
	The terms and conditions of Customer’s use of the Agreement Products and Services and the Information System will be governed exclusively by this Agreement and any applicable Joinder Agreements notwithstanding any different terms submitted by Customer...
	As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given to them below.
	1. “Agreement Products and Services” means, collectively, the Software, Authorized Equipment, Services, subscriptions, Information System, documentation and all other materials identified herein that is or may be made available to Customer pursuant to...
	2. “Authorized Equipment” means equipment that has met HSS standards for operating as part of the Information System and which is made available for purchase or lease under this Agreement or a Joinder Agreement.
	3. “Certified Third Party Software” means software licensed by third parties to Customer or sublicensed by HSS to Customer and listed in the applicable Order Document.
	4. “Fees” means, collectively, all of the fees, charges and expenses chargeable to or due from Customer under this Agreement, including any Order Document.
	5. “Information System” means, collectively, the software, equipment and IT systems made available by HSS and its Affiliates for Customer’s access, use or benefit, including without limitation PEP and the OnQ technology.
	6. “Malicious Code” means any virus, worm, trojan horse, spyware, adware, rootkit, ransomware, scareware, rogueware, backdoor, trap door, logic bomb or similar item intended to cause or capable of causing undesired effects, security breaches and/or da...
	7. “Proprietary Software” means software owned by HSS or its Affiliates.
	8. “Services” means the services provided under this Agreement.
	9. “Software” means the Certified Third-Party Software and Proprietary Software
	10. Notices. Questions and notices regarding this Order Document should be directed to:
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